BIRMINGHAM CITY COUNCIL

CORPORATE AND FINANCE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING

Minutes of the meeting held on Friday, 25" July 2025 at 10.30 hours
in Committee Room 3 & 4, Council House, Victoria Square,
Birmingham

Present:
Councillor Sir Albert Bore (Chair)

Councillors Deirdre Alden, Shabrana Hussain, Katherine Iroh, Ewan Mackey, Lisa
Trickett, Paul Tilsley CBE, and Alex Yip

Also Present:

Clir Karen McCarthy, Cabinet Member for Finance

Carol Culley, Executive Director of Finance and S151 Officer
Chris Tate, Strategic Advisor for Finance (Online)

Fiona Bottrill, Senior Overview and Scrutiny Manager

Sam Yarnall, Interim Scrutiny Officer

1. NOTICE OF WEBCAST

The Chair advised that the meeting would be webcast for live and subsequent
broadcast via the Council's Public-I microsite and that members of the press/public
may record and take photographs except where there were confidential or exempt
items.

2. APOLOGIES

There were apologies tendered by Clir Fred Grindrod, Clir David Barker and Clir Kery
Jenkins. No other apologies were tendered at the meeting. Members noted their best
wishes to ClIr Jenkins and wished her a speedy recovery.



3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were reminded to declare all relevant pecuniary and other registerable
interests arising from any business to be discussed at this meeting. There were no
declarations of interest declared during the meeting.

4. MEMBERSHIP OF THE CORPORATE AND FINANCE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

RESOLVED:

That the resolution of the City Council meeting appointing the Committee, Chair and
Members to serve on the Committee to the period ending with the Annual Meeting of
City Council 2026, be noted.

5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIR

The Chair invited nominations from the Members for Deputy Chair of the Committee,
for the purposes of substitution for the Chair, if absent, for the period ending with the
Annual Meeting of the City Council in 2026. Clirs Alex Yip and Katherine Iroh were
nominated for the position. Upon putting to a vote, Clir Katherine Iroh was voted as
Deputy Chair for the 2025/26 Municipal Year.

RESOLVED:

That Clir Katherine Iroh be elected as Deputy Chair of Corporate and Finance
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the period ending with the Annual Meeting of
the City Council in 2026.

6. MINUTES - CORPORATE AND FINANCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Corporate and Finance Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meetings held on 29 April, 2 May and 19 May 2025 be confirmed as a correct record
and signed by the Chair.

7. ACTION TRACKER

The Chair presented the Action Tracker to the Committee and reminded Members that
comments on the Equal Pay action would need to be taken following the conclusion of
the public meeting. This was due to confidential information that was shared with the
Committee. The Chair also advised that the action that dated back to November 2023

2



in relation to ORACLE and Adult Social Care was still being tracked by Scrutiny
Officers. The Executive Director of Finance agreed to work to get a response on this
action. Members had no further comments on the action tracker and noted the actions.

RESOLVED:

That the action tracker be noted.

8. FINANCIAL OUTTURN FOR THE 2024/25 FINANCIAL YEAR — GENERAL FUND
REVENUE BUDGET, HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT AND THE CAPITAL
PROGRAMME

The Executive Director of Finance provided the financial outturn update to the
Members. The report presented to Members went to Cabinet in June 2025. The
Executive Director highlighted that there were no major areas of concern detailed in
the report; it highlighted an underspend, and financial support was required to balance
the budget.

The Executive Director of Finance explained that lessons had been learnt from the
cross cutting savings, this was illustrated in the summary presentation that Members
received. Members were informed of the final position of the outturn, this included
significant contributions to the Council’s reserves, a reduction in borrowing resulting
from the use of Capital funds and better control on reserves.

Following the update, Members raised the following:

e The Chair highlighted the comments by the Commissioners in relation to the
use of Exceptional Financial Support (EFS) funds and the underspend and
queried what the impact was for planning next year’s budget. In response, the
Executive Director of Finance informed Members that the budget setting
process had begun, and the comments were being recognised as part of the
process in the budget challenge sessions. She also highlighted that there was
work to re-base the budget and the savings targets for the next year.

e Members highlighted the £17.8 million overspend and its impact on delivering
savings. The Executive Director of Finance responded that the first point of call
was to mitigate pressures in-year, and this was set out in the responsibilities of
the budget.

¢ Members acknowledged the work to reduce the pressure on EFS over the last
year and acknowledged that assets were sold to fill in gaps within the budget.
There were further comments on the levels of reserves increasing, and there
were concerns over the underspend in the designated schools grant and vacant
posts at the Council. Members were informed that there were reasonable levels
of reserves as well as additional ring-fenced funding and there was further work
to the capital and treasury management programme which would support
longer term sustainability.



e Members commented on the £11.3 million that had been collected from
business rates and noted that Council Tax collection was lower and queried
what was being done to improve this. In terms of the Council Tax Members were
updated that there were elements that were outside of the Council’'s control
such as exemptions. There was also work to maintain and improve collection
rates.

e Members discussed the finances of the highways and highlighted a recent case
where an individual received a car parking penalty despite not owning a car.
This led to a question from Members on the expenditure in the courts and the
impacts on both the highways and legal teams when prosecuting cases of fraud
that victims were facing. Members requested a further paper on this for a later
date. The Executive Director of Finance and the Cabinet Member for Finance
responded to the comments from Members and agreed to investigate and
report back to the Committee. The Cabinet Member acknowledged the distress
of victims of cloned car plates can have on them especially with the potential
court costs.

¢ Members commented on the figures under the savings of the waste collection
service and noted the continued impact of the waste dispute. The Chair added
that this was a matter that he had raised with the Leader of the Council and
Members further added that residents had paid for private collections. The
Cabinet Member acknowledged the comments and agreed to raise these with
the relevant Cabinet Member.

e Members commented on the use of one-off grants that had supported in
delivering savings and commented on its impact on the general reserves of the
Council.

e The Executive Director of Finance highlighted that in terms of debt and
monitoring savings, the Council had monitored this well, but it was harder to
identify risks, these tended to be identified as the year progressed. There was
further work for the 2026/27 budget setting process to improve this.

e Members discussed the Council Tax exemption and the increase of Council Tax
in recent years having an impact on the more vulnerable members of the City
and was informed that there was a relief policy that highlighted the level of
support, and that collection of Council Tax was at 91%. 100% would not be
possible due to factors such as transient population.

e The Chair stated that the work of the Budget Task and Finish Group had
highlighted the comments raised and requested that future reports included the
recommendations that had been made.

The Chair concluded the item and asked Members to agree the recommendation to
note the contents of the report.

RESOLVED:
That:



i.  The contents of the report, be noted.
ii.  Future reports included the recommendations made by the Budget Task &
Finish group.

9. CAPITAL GOVERNANCE

The Executive Director of Finance presented the item and highlighted that the
information presented in the report was the first stage of improvement work for the
Capital Programme. The need for prioritisation and constraints were being recognised
and it was highlighted that previously there had been large amounts of slippage. This
had helped develop further criteria for prioritisation and helped make the Capital
Programme a live process. There were improvements over monitoring and lessons
learnt.

Following the introduction from the Executive Director, Members commented and
asked the following questions:

e The Chair highlighted the comments made by the Commissioners on the work
of the Capital Programme.

e The Chair asked whether there was a role for scrutiny to input. The Executive
Director of Finance replied that there was potential for scrutiny to contribute to
the work and look at recommendations from the review.

e Members requested further detail on the “Gateway Stages” for the Capital
Programme in relation to contract management. The Cabinet Member for
Finance responded that the contract management process had extensive
discussion on the governance arrangement and the stages highlighted in the
report would support this. There was scope for scrutiny involvement as part of
this.

e Members asked about the role of scrutiny when there was urgency of using
Capital funds for projects. The Executive Director of Finance explained that
before a decision was made for the use of Capital Funding there were approvals
beforehand. It was highlighted that there was further work under the corporate
landlord function when improvements to a property was needed. This was the
same for externally funded programmes and there was further work to examine
the process.

e In relation to urgent spend requests, the limited accountability of these
requests, whether the Council had looked to other authorities for best practice,
and if greater accountability could be factored into the Capital Programme
Governance. The Executive Director of Finance replied that there were more
robust governance checks because of the redesign. The reason for a further
review into the corporate landlord function was to allow for a better
understanding of the processes. There was further work around culture and
understanding of the governance processes in the organisation in relation to



the Capital Programme, and it was noted that late external funding could have
an impact on the timelines.

e Members discussed the previous report, Financial Outturn Report, and noted
that the Capital Programme had slipped and it had an impact on costs.

e The Committee discussed the changes to governance having an impact on
approval timelines and was pleased that the process was being looked at.
However, assurances that the new process would not have a negative impact
on time was requested. The Executive Director and Cabinet Member of Finance
assured Members that there were factors that would cause slippage, but the
work undertaken had helped understand what was a genuine slippage that
could not be avoided. Also, it was noted that the new system would require
robustness to detail how the work would be completed.

e The Chair questioned whether they had added slippage to the corporate risk
register. The Executive Director of Finance responded that a first draft of the
risk register was going to Audit Committee, at the time of the meeting the risk
of slippage was not on the register.

e Members were pleased to see that scrutiny had been recognised as part of the
governance process for the Capital Programme.

e Members enquired about the contract process and the possibility of a penalty
clause if there were risk of projects not being delivered on time. The Executive
Director of Finance explained that there were protections in the contracts but
highlighted it was a complex area that required robust governance.

Following the comments from Members, the recommendation as outlined in the report
was agreed by the Committee.

RESOLVED:
That the contents of the report in Appendix 1, be noted.

10. 2026/27 TO 2028/29 GENERAL FUND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
REFRESH - UPDATE TO CABINET AT QUARTER 1 OF THE 2025/26 FINANCIAL
YEAR

The Executive Director of Finance introduced this item by highlighting that they had
reinstated the budget principles, this supported an overview of what went well over
the last year in terms of spending and savings. It was noted that in local
government the funding was increasing but overall, but the increase was lower than
in previous years. Funding for local government was said to be changing which
included a change to the funding allocation formula to give more weighting to
factors such as deprivation and the Council Tax base into account.

Members were also informed of the work by Government to update the deprivation

index. In terms of the Council, work was ongoing in presenting the budget in a user-
friendly format so it could be more accessible. The gap within the budget was said

6



to be closing but it was premature to present the detail of this and there was a
timeline in place for the budget setting process. This included starting the formal
process in October of this year, which was noted as being ambitious.

Following the update, Members comments and questions included:

The Chair was pleased to see that the inflation assumption had been
considered as part of the budget setting process along with identifying the
potential risks.

The Chair asked about the Fair Funding Review Consultation and whether
the Council had intended to submit a response. The Executive Director of
Finance responded that there was the intention to submit a response by the
15t August 2025 deadline. It was highlighted that officers were working with
nearby cities and metropolitan cities to support the position and response.
The benefits of the consultation so far had highlighted a closer link to the
children funding formula and the deprivation formula. There were concerns
expressed on the adult social care formula.

In response to whether the priorities of the MTFP was aligned with the
Corporate Plan, the Executive Director explained that the priorities of the
Corporate Plan provided an important part of the framework for budget
decisions.

Members asked about the impact of strategic changes such as changes to
industrial zones and its impact on place directorate, and had the risks that
had been identified and the impact on the budget. The Executive Director of
Finance highlighted that they were collaborating with the strategic director to
ensure the proposals were robust and enabled resources to support growth.
Members welcomed the report’s emphasis on early prevention and
intervention in relation to budget planning.

Members commented on the business case for procurement being finalised
and highlighted the £50 million savings as a result. The Executive Director
of Finance replied that they were working closely with the Cabinet Member
and Officers to ensure that the procurement process improved. There was
work with other services areas to support this such as Children and Families
and Adult Social Care Directorates.

There was a discussion on the budget cuts made last year and this year,
each year’s savings was worth £150 million and it was queried as to how
future savings would be planned. Members were informed that in terms of
the savings, there would be extensive work over the Summer to support the
savings decisions.

The Chair highlighted that the next steps of the process for the Committee
was for the work to start in October 2025 with a Terms of Reference for the
task and finish group to be presented to the Committee in September 2025.
The Chair highlighted that it would be beneficial to look towards similar
authorities for context as part of the budget process. The Executive Director
highlighted that this was already being completed to support benchmarking.
A question was raised in relation to the accounts for 2023/24 not being
finalised and what was the last set that had been approved and audited. The



Executive Director replied that the last set of completed audited accounts
were the 2021/22 accounts. It was noted that the 2022/23 and 2023/24
accounts were being taken through to Audit Committee in June 2025 and
published for their public inspection period. These are due to go to Audit
Committee in September/October to be ‘backstopped’ to complete the audit.
The 2024/25 Accounts have also bene published and the audit work has
started on them. The backstop process rather than a full audit is in line with
the national process which ensured that accounts were cleared as early as
possible.

e Members queried whether there were any concerns on the Council’s stability
as well as the inherited historical issues in relation to finances. The
Executive Director of Finance highlighted that the commencement the
2024/25 audit process would support with the stability and confidence of the
accounts. Members raised concerns on the risk of costs impacting the
budget timeline. Equal Pay was given as an example, and it was queried if
the timelines and its continued impact could be explained. The Executive
Director responded that it was difficult to comment on the details due to the
nature of the topic. The timelines were being worked to the end of
September. It was an associated risk, and Officers were acutely aware of
the impacts.

e Members highlighted that there were similar issues in the health service and
that there should be further joint working to support each other.

Members agreed the recommendation as outlined in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report, as outlined in Appendix 1, be noted.

11. QUARTER ONE FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT — GENERAL FUND
BUDGET, HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET, DEDICATED SCHOOLS
GRANT BUDGET AND THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Members were informed that the Quarter One report was presented to Cabinet
recently; the report highlighted challenges that were faced, especially in social
care, the staffing profile of the Council, and the delivery of savings. In terms of the
savings, there were delays within the City Operations directorate. The recent waste
dispute was recognised as a contributing factor to the under-delivery of savings
and the Commissioners comments had illustrated as such.

The Cabinet Member for Finance highlighted that this was the fourth report from
the finance directorate on the agenda and she noted the work of the Officers in
preparing the reports and the work they do in the Council. Following the update
from the Executive Director and the Cabinet Member, Members of the Committee
raised the following questions and comments.



e Members asked the level of debt and whether the Officers were comfortable
with the cover of work to address the debt. The Executive Director of Finance
responded that they were confident in the team and that the treasury
management budgets could support the recovery.

e Members commented that the non-delivery of savings in City Operations
had been raised by the Committee last year and commented that the £3
million overspend due to delays in Children’s Services achieving Home to
School transport savings was unsurprising. A similar remark was made
regarding the £3 million in undelivered savings from the Customer Contact
consolidation. The Executive Director of Finance responded by noting the
comments of members and that the Customer Contact consolidation had
delivered £8m with a residual of £3 million and that initial scoping had been
done with high level data to support the delivery of alternative savings.

e Members commented on the pressures on temporary accommodation and
there was a need to acknowledge the impact on families especially when
there was further planning permissions approved for further student
accommodation.

e The Cabinet Member for Finance responded to the comments on student
accommodation and oversaturation; that the difficulty was with the planning
inspectorate to understand the impact on the area.

e Members asked about treasury management, the £3.6bn debt mentioned in
the report, whether they were ensuring that services were being provided,
and highlighted that the budget was approved in February 2025 with assets
being detailed to be sold to cover the debt. The Executive Director of
Finance responded that the debt was largely from the Public Works Loans
Board. The level of historic debt held is high and towards the upper end for
Core Cities. Steps are being taken to avoid the debt increasing. This forms
part of the work for future budget planning.

The Chair concluded the item and outlined the development of the Executive and
Scrutiny Protocol, which had been informed by practices from other local
authorities such as Liverpool. The protocol aimed to strengthen the working
relationship between scrutiny and the executive. It was noted that protocol would
support the work of the Committee including its role in the budget consultation
work. Members agreed to note the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the content of the report in Appendix A, be noted.

12. CORPORATE AND FINANCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORK PROGRAMME

The Chair introduced the item as part of the Committee’s annual business to agree
the Terms of Reference and Work Programme. It was noted that the
Commissioners had approved a shorter work programme approach, allowing the
Committee to plan a few months ahead rather than for the entire year.

9



Within the report, the Chair highlighted the development of the Information Hub
and its associated working group, which aimed to provide Scrutiny with earlier
access to key information, particularly around savings delivery and the
Improvement and Recovery Programmes. It was explained how the timeline for this
information would be shared with Members.

The Senior Overview and Scrutiny Manager provided an update on the Terms of
Reference and Work Programme, including a correction to the recommendations,
clarifying that they were intended for the Corporate and Finance Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, not the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

An additional update was provided in Appendix C regarding the Sustainability
Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s work programme.

Members proceeded to appoint the cross-party Information Hub Working Group.
Nominations were received for Clir Sir Albert Bore (Chair), Clir Katherine Iroh, Clir
Deirdre Alden, and Clir Paul Tilsley, CBE. These appointments were agreed
unanimously.

RESOLVED:

That the:

1. Committee’s Terms of Reference for 2025/26 as set out in Appendix A, be

noted.

2. The Terms of Reference for the Information Working Group in Section 4.4-

4.6 of the report, be agreed.

3. A minimum of 4 Members (cross party) including the Chair of the Corporate
and Finance Overview and Scrutiny Committee, be appointed. The
Members included:

a. ClIr Sir Albert Bore (Chair)

b. Clir Katherine Iroh

c. Clir Deirdre Alden

d. Clir Paul Tilsley, CBE
The draft work programme, as set out in Appendix A, be agreed.

The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes, as set out in Appendix C, be
agreed.

o~

13. REQUEST(S) FOR CALL IN/COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION /
PETITIONS RECEIVED (IF ANY)
None.

14. OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

10



There was no other urgent business discussed at the meeting.

15. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
RESOLVED:
That the scheduled meetings for the 2025/26 Municipal Year, be noted.

The meeting ended at 12.35 hours.

Chair’s signature:

11



	CORPORATE AND FINANCE Overview & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE Meeting
	Minutes of the meeting held on Friday, 25th July 2025 at 10.30 hours in Committee Room 3 & 4, Council House, Victoria Square, Birmingham


